
STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:  Board Members Introductions   
   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM: 4   
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 0 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   / x  / Information   
   /   / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):   
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



Dr. Robert S. McCord 
 
Biographic Information: 
Robert S. McCord 
AASA Research Professor in Residence 
Associate Professor of Education Leadership 
University of Nevada, Las Vegas 
 
Dr. Robert S. McCord’s career in education began in the 300,000 student Clark County School 
District (CCSD) in Las Vegas where he served as a teacher, counselor, dean, assistant principal, 
principal, director of federal programs, director of research and development, and completed the 
final decade of his 30-year career with the district as the assistant superintendent for school 
accountability and government relations. After retiring from the CCSD, he joined the 
Department of Education Leadership at the University of Nevada, Las Vegas where his also 
directs the Center for Education Policy Studies. In addition, Dr. McCord is widely published 
with a particular emphasis on school policy and law. He also serves on the board of many 
organizations including WestEd. 
 
 
Elissa Wahl  
 
I'm the product of 2 public school teachers who loved to instill in their children a love of learning. 
Growing up, I was forever playing with math manipulatives, workbooks, and reading. We had a great 
home on a rural lane, lots of trees, a stream, and friendly neighbors. It made for a lot of outdoor play with 
our imaginations. 
 
While pregnant with my first son, I heard about homeschooling. After he was born I realized I was 
meeting his needs, not only developmentally, but he was learning! I enjoyed watching his brain spin and 
grasp things...by the time he was 2 I knew we would homeschool! 
 
Married to Chris for almost 12 years, together we have 2 sons, my son from a previous marriage, and 
Chris' 2 sons from a previous marriage. Yes, adding correctly that is a total of 5 boys! Their ages are 18, 
18, 15, 10 & 5. My oldest, 18, has been homeschooled since birth, as have the 2 youngest. I was also able 
to homeschool 1 of my stepsons from 5th-7th grade, until he moved out of state. The other has Cerebral 
Palsy and has always been in public school. 
 
While religious reasons were not the primary reason for choosing to homeschool, we do indeed try to 
walk with the Lord.  
 
Between our 5 boys, 4 have some special need or another, and one would be termed "gifted" if in school. 
This allows me to truly know that homeschooling evolves not only from year to year, but also from child 
to child. 
 
I have been active in the homeschool/educational community for many years and in many different ways: 

• Hosted for AOL in the Homeschool Chatroom for 3 years 
• Co-Authored "Christian Unschooling; Growing Your Children in the Freedom of Christ" 
• Edited and Published an online ezine, Seedling (yahoogroups) 
• Formed a local homeschool support group in the NW area of Las Vegas 



• Mentoring leader for 2 other local support groups 
• Founding Officer, past President and current Officer, of Nevada Homeschool Network, NV's 

statewide homeschool  advocacy organization 
• continually lobbying for homeschool freedoms 
• Clark County point of contact for new homeschoolers 
• many tv and print interviews 
• volunteer mentoring in the community 
• speaking engagements on homeschooling 
• blogging about Christian Unschooling  

 
And my newest endeavor...... RISE Resource Center.  RISE's mission is to provide a facility and 
resources to support educational choice. In October of 2011 we moved from our kitchens to a building. 
 We are now running this educational non-profit as an all volunteer organization. Our goals include 
educating every parent about the educational options available in Las Vegas, and then supporting them in 
a variety of ways no matter what their choice is.  We currently offer programs and classes such as "New 
Homeschoolers", "Parent Effectiveness Training", "Immersion Spanish", "Out Of The Box Language 
Arts", "Reading Circles With the Love Dogs", ongoing crafts days, science days, math days and so much 
more. 
RISE's biggest goal is to change the face of education in Las Vegas. We are working towards having our 
own dedicated educational facility in the future and satellite offices around the valley. Check out what 
we're doing at www.riseresourcecenter.org 
That's it...I'm a mom who loves education and wants to help others in their educational journey! 
 
 
Nora Luna 
 
Nora Luna is currently the Hispanic/Latino Program Manager for Nathan Adelson Hospice (NAH). She 
develops and manages community outreach programs and facilitates partnerships between NAH and other 
Hispanic/Latino organizations. Previously she was an Assistant Professor and School Retention Specialist 
for the University Of Nevada Reno (UNR), Cooperative Extension. She developed, implemented, 
monitored and evaluated programs to enhance school engagement, prevent high school dropout and 
increase college attendance among underrepresented youth and families in Clark County. Prior to that, she 
served as the Associate Director of the U.S. – Mexico Border Communities Alliance for the Western 
Center for the Application of Prevention Technologies (CAPT) at UNR. She provided training and 
technical assistance related to research-based prevention and education to state, school and community 
personnel in Alaska, California Montana, Nevada, Oregon, Utah, Wyoming and the U.S. – Mexico border 
region. She was the lead in the development of all Western CAPT Spanish products and other training 
materials. She has a Bachelor of Arts degree in Criminal Justice and a Master’s degree in Education. 
During her employment at the YMCA of Southern Nevada, Ms. Luna implemented positive youth 
development programs, parenting programs and after-school tutoring programs. Currently she serves on 
the board of the Girls Scouts of Southern Nevada. Nora Luna was born in Las Vegas, Nevada and is the 
daughter of Mexican immigrants.   
 
 
Kathleen A. Conaboy 
 
Ms. Conaboy is a member of the Government Affairs Group, a subsidiary of the statewide law firm 
McDonald Carano Wilson.  As a member of the Government Affairs Group, Ms. Conaboy represents 
Nevada, regional and national clients in a variety of sectors, including energy, health care, education, 
hospitality, public safety, transportation, recycling/waste management, communications, and project 



development.  The Group represents clients in grassroots campaigns, in local government proceedings, in 
the state legislature, at the agencies of the executive branch, and in regulatory proceedings.   
Before joining MCW in December 2006, Kathleen spent 25 years in medical education administration.  
As Assistant Dean for Planning and Development at the University of Nevada School of Medicine, she 
worked on federal issues such Medicare support for graduate medical education, rural health issues such 
as funding for the National Health Service Corps and Area Health Education Centers, and clinical projects 
such as the Nevada Suicide Research Center.   On the state level, she advocated for issues such as GME 
funding and capital construction projects and worked on the development of a Medicaid managed care 
program. 
 
Kathleen also consulted with DJW Associates, a national consulting firm specializing in accreditation, 
development of new medical schools, and organizational change in academic medicine.   
Kathleen has extensive experience in USAID-funded international development projects in medical 
education. From 1999 to 2006, she coordinated reform projects in the Central Asia Republics (CAR), 
including the formation of the CAR Council of Rectors, an association of the region’s leading medical 
educators, and extensive collaboration with Kazakhstan’s Ministry of Health in the development of a 
national reform strategy for health professions education. She has presented this work at international 
meetings. 
She is married to John Bardwell, an illustrator and renowned artist with works in numerous private and 
corporate collections. 
 
She currently serves on the boards of the Children’s Cabinet Foundation and the Ronald McDonald 
House in Reno; she recently completed a term on Board of Directors of the Nevada Women’s Fund, 
during which time she chaired the Development Committee. 
 
 
Melissa Mackedon 
 
Melissa grew up in Fallon, Nevada.  She graduated with honors from the University of Nevada 
Reno in 1997, with degrees in elementary and special education. She earned her Master’s Degree 
in Educational Leadership from the University of Nevada Reno in the spring of 2006.  She taught 
for eight years in Utah, California and Nevada, both special education and regular education. 
While teaching she served on a variety of school level and district level committees.  She quit 
teaching full time when she became a mother in 2007, and went to work part time for Western 
Nevada College where she taught English, Education and GED Preparatory Classes.  She is one 
of the founders of Oasis Academy, a charter school in Fallon, Nevada which opened in the fall of 
2011.   Currently, she is the busy mother of two young children, Fenn and Hazel, and the 
administrator of Oasis Academy. 
 
 
Marc Abelman 
 
Raised in San Diego, CA I enjoyed the beach lifestyle until I moved to Las Vegas in ‘98. 
While attending San Diego State University I studied English. For most of my life I have worked 
in the restaurant industry.  
 
After moving to Las Vegas, I married and have been actively raising a family (2 daughters ages 9 
and 10). In ’04, my wife and I started an Interior Design business.  We have steadily grown and 



last year purchased our “permanent home”, an architecturally beautiful building in the Arts 
District downtown.  Thus, firmly planting our roots here in Las Vegas. 
 
Actively involved in my daughters’ education, I joined the governing board at Imagine in the 
Valle in ‘09 as what is now Quest Academy.  
 
My interest in being a board member at Quest and on the SPCSA is largely due to a need for 
change.  Personally, it has taken me most of my adult life to figure out what I am passionate 
about. I feel that growing and learning are a life long journey, not just a way to get a job.  
 
Through life experiences and formal education, I believe I bring the balance needed to help our 
children find their true passion. 
 
 
Michael Van 
 
I am married with three children. I am Active in church and community, coaching youth 
baseball. I enjoy the outdoors, hunting, fishing, golf and when possible other athletic events. 
 
I was an in-house counsel for two large construction companies which had several affiliated 
companies. The companies collectively maintained a work force of more than 2000 employees. 
The principals for the companies also had several real estate holdings and investments which 
were created and monitored. Further, managed, maintained and monitored all litigation. 
 
Currently I work for Shumway Van & Hansen is a General Practice firm. 
Primary areas of practice include: representation of individual and business debtors and creditors 
in bankruptcy in both Utah and Nevada bankruptcy courts. 
 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   
 
S U B J E C T:  Election of Officers 
 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:   5
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 0 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  X/ Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Election of Officers for the State Public Charter School Authority Board 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None  
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):   
 
BACKGROUND: The forming of the State Public Charter School Authority Board requires the 
election of officers to serve on the Board.     
 
    NRS 386.5095  Appointment and qualifications of members; terms; vacancies; selection of 
Chair and Vice Chair; compensation, allowances and travel expenses. 
    5.  The members of the State Public Charter School Authority shall select a Chair and Vice Chair 
from among its members. After the initial selection of those officers, each of those officers holds the 
position for a term of 2 years commencing on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. If a vacancy occurs 
in the Chair or Vice Chair, the vacancy must be filled in the same manner as the original selection for 
the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   
 
S U B J E C T:  State Public Charter School 
Director Opening Comments/Orientation, Overview 
of Statute, Staff Introductions, Staffing and Budget 
 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:  6
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1  
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /  x / Information   
   /  X/ Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Opening Comments/Orientation, Overview of Statute, Staff Introductions, Staffing 
and Budget 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.  
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  
 
BACKGROUND: Dr. Steve Canavero will comment and provide an overview of the statute establishing 
the SPCSA, lead staff introductions, and detail the office staffing and budget.     
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOLS: GENERAL OVERVIEW 

Name of School 
Grade 
Levels Location 

 
Type School Website 

*Alpine Academy 9-12 Sparks On-site www.alpineacademy.net 
*Beacon Academy 9-12 LV Distance 

Coral Academy Las Vegas 
www.banv.org 

K-12 LV On-site 
Discovery Charter School 

www.coralacademylv.org 
K-8 LV On-site 

Elko Institute for Academic 
Achievement 

www.dcslv.org 

K-8 Elko 
 

On-site 
Imagine School Mt. View 

www.elkocharterschool.com 
K-2 LV On-site 

Nevada Connections 
www.imaginemountainview.com 

K-12 Sparks Distance 
Nevada State High School 

www.conectionsacademy.com 
11-12 LV On-site 

Nevada Virtual 
www.earlycollegeNV.com 

K-12 LV Distance 
Oasis Academy 

www.k12.com/nvva 
K-8 Fallon On-site 

*Quest Academy Preparatory 
Education 

www.oasisacademyfallon.us 

K-8 LV On-site 

*Renaissance Academy 
www.questacademylv.com 

K-12 LV Distance 
Silver Sands Montessori 

www.nevadainternetacademy.com 
K-7 Henderson On-site 

*Silver State  
www.silversandsmcs.org 

7-12 Carson City Distance 
Somerset Academy/N. LV 

www.SSHS.org 
K-7 LV On-site 

*Schools who identified in their charter as targeting at-risk student population 
www.somersetacademyoflasvegas.com 

2011-2012 STUDENT POPULATION 

94

491

1116

184

162

158

1481

240

3679

181

597

456

250

448

1054

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

Alpine Academy

Beacon Academy

Coral Academy of Science

Discovery Charter School

Elko Institute for Academic Achievement

Imagine School at Mt. View

Nevada Connections

Nevada State High School

Nevada Virtual

Oasis Academy

Quest

Renaissance

Silver Sands Montessori

Silver State

Somerset

 
Enrollment data current as of 12/22/2011--Source: Bighorn Enrollment Matrix Report 

 

2010-2011 STUDENT ETHNICITY 

Am. Indian/Alaskan Native

Asian

Hispanic

Black

Pacific Islander

Multi-Race

White

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Charter
State

 
Source:  2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 

State N=437,057   Charter N=7,545 
 

http://www.alpineacademy.net/�
http://www.banv.org/�
http://www.coralacademylv.org/�
http://www.dcslv.org/�
http://www.imaginemountainview.com/�
http://www.conectionsacademy.com/�
http://www.earlycollegenv.com/�
http://www.k12.com/nvva�
http://www.oasisacademyfallon.us/�
http://www.nevadainternetacademy.com/�
http://www.silversandsmcs.org/�
http://www.sshs.org/�
http://www.somersetacademyoflasvegas.com/�


 
SCHOOL ENROLLMENT OVERVIEW  

Charter School Student Population by School Years

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012

 
Source:  Department of Education Enrollment-Public Schools 
 

Number of Active Charter Schools by School Year

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012

 
Source:  Department of Education Enrollment-Public Schools 
 

CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION HISTORY 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Approved
Denied
Closed
Total Applications Received

 
Source:  NRS 386.525 (9) Legislative update 



OVERVIEW 

Percentage of Student Population by School Type

62%

38%
Distance 
On-Site

N=10,591
 

 

Percent of Schools by Grade Level

7%

39%

7%

20%

27%
Elmentary Only
Elmentary/Middle
Middle/High School
High School Only
All Grades

N=15
 

 

Percentage of Schools by Region

20%

67%

13%

North
South
Central/Rural

N=15
 



 
2010-2011 ADEQUATE YEARLY PROGRESS  

2010/2011 AYP Designations: Elementary Schools

17%

17%

66%

0%

0%

Watch
In Need of Improvement
Adequate
Continuing Exemplary
High Achieving--Growth

N=6
 

Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 
 

2010/2011 AYP Designations: Secondary Schools

37%

13%
24%

13%

13%

Watch
In Need of Improvement
Adequate
Continuing Exemplary
High Achieving--Growth

N=8
 

Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 
 

2010/2011 AYP Classification

4

5

2

1

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Elementary Middle School High School

Made AYP
Did Not Make AYP

 
Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 
 



2010-2011 CRITERION REFERENCED TEST 

CRT: Percentage of Proficiency

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%

3rd
 M

ath

3rd
 R

ea
ding

4th
 M

ath

4th
 R

ea
din

g

5th
 M

ath

5th
 R

ea
din

g

6th
 M

ath

6th
 R

ea
din

g

7th
 M

ath

7th
 R

ea
din

g

8th
 M

ath

8th
 R

ea
din

g

State
District

 
Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 
 

2010-2011 WRITING ASSESSMENT 

Writing Assessment: Percentage of Proficiency

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

5th Writing 8th Writing

State
District

 
Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 
 

2010-2011 High School Proficiency Exam 

HSPE Percentage of Proficiency

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%
90.0%

100.0%

Math Reading Science Writing

State 
District

 
Source: 2010-2011 Nevada Annual Reports of Accountability 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   
 
S U B J E C T:  Overview of Open Meeting Law 
and Nevada Ethics in Government 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM: 7   
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   / x  / Information   
   /   / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S): Dr. James E. Irvin, Deputy Attorney General and Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, 
SPCSA 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):   
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. James E. Irvin, Deputy Attorney General and Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, 
SPCSA 





























































STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:  Charter School Application 
Approval or Denial Decision-Making Policy 
 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:   8 
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 2 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  X/ Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the proposed “Charter School Application Approval or Denial 
Decision-Making Policy of the Nevada State Public Charter School Authority” including the “Review 
by the State Public Charter School Authority of a Charter School Application for a Fall, 2013, Startup”  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):  
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):   
 
BACKGROUND: The transition from the State Board of Education as a charter school sponsor to 
the State Public Charter School Authority as a sponsor requires revisions to the charter school 
application review process and decision making policy.  The proposed process and policy are 
consistent with national best practices for application review and decision-making.     
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



Review by the State Public Charter School Authority 
Of a Charter School Application for a Fall, 2013, Startup 

 
 
Suggested Authority Board meeting date to comply with statutory requirements and 
based on a September 4, 2012, application due date is in bold font: 
 
 
1. A charter school application for sponsorship by the State Public Charter School 

Authority (Authority) proposing a fall, 2013, startup of the school must be submitted 
by the Committee to Form the School and received by Authority staff at 1749 
Stewart Street, Suite 40, Carson City, between 8:00AM, Monday, August 27, 2012, 
and 5:00PM, Friday, August 31, 2012.  For the purposes of NRS 386.525, the date of 
receipt of an application submitted between the dates and times identified above 
will be Tuesday, September 4, 2012. 

 
2. Upon receipt of an application by Authority staff, a copy of the application will be 

sent to all Authority Board members. 
 
3. The Authority Board will meet 45 days after September 4, 2012 (Friday, October 19, 

2012), to review the application for compliance with statute and regulation and for 
completeness and for approval or denial. 

 
4. During the 45 day period between receipt of the application and the meeting of the 

Authority Board, the Application Review Team will review the application and 
interview the members of the Committee to Form the School.  

 
5. Based on its review of the application and interview of the Committee, the 

Application Review Team, at the Authority Board meeting to be held October 19, 
2012, will make a recommendation to the Authority Board for approval or denial of 
the application. 

 
6. Within 30 days after the October 19, 2012, meeting Authority staff will provide 

written notice of the Authority Board’s determination to the applicant.  
 

7. If the Authority Board denies an application, and the applicant wishes to resubmit 
the application for further consideration by the Authority Board, the applicant will 
be given 30 days after receipt of the written notice referred to in 6, above, to correct 
the application’s deficiencies and resubmit the application.   

 
8. Upon receipt of a resubmitted application by Authority staff, a copy of the 

application will be sent to all Authority Board members. 
 



9. The Application Review Team will review the resubmitted application for correction 
of the deficiencies identified in the written notice. 

 
10. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Authority Board will review the 

resubmitted application for compliance with applicable statute and regulation and 
for completeness and for approval or denial.  

 
11. Based on review of the resubmitted application, the Application Review Team, at the 

meeting identified in 10, above, of the Authority Board, will make a 
recommendation to the Authority Board for approval or denial of the resubmitted 
application. 

 
Timeline: 
 

Tuesday, September 4, 2012:  Effective date of application receipt by Authority staff.  
Per statute, the Authority Board shall meet to consider the application “not later than 
45 days after receipt of the application.”  45 days after September 4 is October 19. 

 
Friday, October 19, 2012:  Meeting of the Authority Board.  Per statute, “not more than 
30 days after the meeting,” the Authority staff shall provide written notice of the 
Authority Board’s determination regarding the application to the applicant.   
 
Within 30 days of October 19, 2012:  Authority staff will provide written notice of the 
Authority Board’s determination to the applicant.  Per statute, if the Authority Board 
denies the application, “the applicant must be granted 30 days after receipt of the 
written notice” to correct and resubmit the application.   
 
Within 30 days of receipt by the application of the written notice:  Resubmitted 
application due to the Authority staff.   
 
Next regularly scheduled meeting of the Authority Board:  Board considers the 
resubmitted application. 
 
 

Excerpts of NRS 386.525 follow: 
 
NRS 386.525  Submission of application to form charter school to proposed sponsor; review of application; 
assistance of Department; opportunity to correct deficiencies; appeal of denial; biennial report by 
Superintendent of Public Instruction concerning status of applications. 
 
     2.  If the board of trustees of a school district or a college or a university within the Nevada System of Higher 
Education, as applicable, receives an application to form a charter school, the board of trustees or the institution, as 
applicable, shall consider the application at a meeting that must be held not later than 45 days after the receipt of the 
application, or a period mutually agreed upon by the committee to form the charter school and the board of trustees 
of the school district or the institution, as applicable, and ensure that notice of the meeting has been provided 
pursuant to chapter 241 of NRS. If the proposed sponsor requested that the Department review the application 



pursuant to NRS 386.520, the proposed sponsor shall be deemed to receive the application pursuant to this 
subsection upon transmittal of the application from the Department. The board of trustees, the college or the 
university, as applicable, shall review an application to determine whether the application: 
     (a) Complies with NRS 386.490 to 386.610, inclusive, and the regulations applicable to charter schools; and 
     (b) Is complete in accordance with the regulations of the Department. 
 
     6.  If the State Public Charter School Authority receives an application pursuant to subsection 1 or 5, it shall 
consider the application at a meeting which must be held not later than 45 days after receipt of the application. If the 
State Public Charter School Authority requested that the Department review the application pursuant to NRS 
386.520, the State Public Charter School Authority shall be deemed to receive the application pursuant to this 
subsection upon transmittal of the application from the Department. Notice of the meeting must be posted in 
accordance with chapter 241 of NRS. The State Public Charter School Authority shall review the application in 
accordance with the factors set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection 2. The Department shall assist the State 
Public Charter School Authority in the review of an application. The State Public Charter School Authority may 
approve an application if it satisfies the requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection 2. Not more than 30 
days after the meeting, the State Public Charter School Authority shall provide written notice of its determination to 
the applicant. 
     7.  If the State Public Charter School Authority denies or fails to act upon an application, the denial or failure to 
act must be based upon a finding that the applicant failed to adequately address objective criteria established by 
regulation of the Department or the State Board. The State Public Charter School Authority shall include in the 
written notice the reasons for the denial or the failure to act and the deficiencies in the application. The staff 
designated by the State Public Charter School Authority shall meet with the applicant to confer on the method to 
correct the identified deficiencies. The applicant must be granted 30 days after receipt of the written notice to correct 
any deficiencies identified in the written notice and resubmit the application. 
     8.  If the State Public Charter School Authority denies an application after it has been resubmitted pursuant to 
subsection 7, the applicant may, not more than 30 days after the receipt of the written notice from the State Public 
Charter School Authority, appeal the final determination to the district court of the county in which the proposed 
charter school will be located. 
 



 

Charter School Application Approval or Denial Decision-Making Policy of the 

Nevada State Public Charter School Authority 

 

A Nevada Charter School Application packet identifying everything that must be addressed in a charter 
school application and providing guidance for completion of the application shall be developed, adopted 
by the Authority Board, and made available to all charter school stakeholders.  The Packet shall identify 
Required Elements and Evaluation Criteria for each of three “plans” addressing major school-operation 
considerations: Education Plan, Organization Plan, and Business Plan.  Authority staff shall provide 
periodic trainings and as-needed and other technical assistance for Committees to Form Charter Schools 
attempting to prepare and submit an application and open and operate a charter school. 

Authority Board members, through training provided or coordinated by Authority staff and others, or 
obtained independently, shall make approval or denial decisions based on a thorough understanding of 
the charter school concept, including charter school accountability and autonomy.  Consideration of 
charter school “best practices,” including those related to charter school operation and charter school 
application review as identified by the National Association of Charter School Authorizers, shall be a key 
component of such training.   

An application review process consistent with NRS 386.525 and application review best practices shall 
be developed, adopted and implemented by the Authority Board.  The process  shall be incorporated 
into the decision-making policy stated herein.  The Authority Board shall propose to the State Board of 
Education, which solely retains regulation-making authority, that the process be established in NAC 
(Nevada Administrative Code; regulation).   

The Authority’s Application Review Team (ART) shall consist of members collectively possessing 
expertise in all areas of public school operation, including but not limited to curriculum, instruction, 
finance, discipline, special education, safety, and facilities.  The ART shall also include at least one peer 
reviewer, that is, a current charter school operator, and at least one external reviewer, that is, an out-of-
state national charter school expert.  The role of the ART is, after appropriate deliberation, to 
recommend to the Authority Board either approval or denial of the application.    

The ART shall consist of both Generalist and Specialist application reviewers.  Although all ART members 
shall read the entire application and contribute to the ART’s recommendation to the Authority Board for 
approval or denial of the application, deference and weight shall be given in the recommendations to 
the findings and concerns of Specialist reviewers for their area of expertise.  For example, the ART’s 
budget and finance Specialist’s findings, concerns and recommendations regarding the proposed 
school’s budget and financial plan shall be given deference and weight over Generalists’ findings for the 
budget and financial plan. 

ART members’ findings leading to approval or denial recommendations to the Authority Board shall be 
based upon analysis of the application for completeness (Have all requirements identified in the 



 

Application Packet been addressed?); compliance with applicable law and regulation; whether or not 
the application, in each part and as a whole, meets standards identified in the Charter School 
Application packet; and whether or not the application meets the requirements of any Request for 
Proposals the Authority Board may have issued.    

Equally pertinent to the application review, and given equal weight as the application review in the 
formation of a recommendation by the ART to the Authority Board, shall be the results of an interview 
by the ART of the members of the Committee to Form the School that submitted the application.  The 
purpose of such an interview shall be to ascertain Committee members’ familiarity with the application 
and knowledge of public charter school operation.  For example, the interview may reveal 
misunderstanding by Committee members of special education requirements; such potentially 
damaging misunderstanding may not have been revealed in the application, given a written application’s 
inherent limitations.  Alternatively, an interview may clear up ART members’ misunderstanding of the 
Committee to Form’s intentions; in any case, the interview is an indispensable communication tool 
further informing the ART’s recommendation to the Authority Board.       

Authority Board members shall acquaint themselves with the application’s contents by reading it and by 
attending a presentation of the application by the applicants at the regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Board in which the Board shall consider the application for approval or denial.  The Board’s decision for 
approval or denial shall be based upon the ART’s recommendation; the presentation by the applicants; 
Board members’ own analysis of the application for completeness and compliance; and Board Members’ 
analysis of the application for meeting standards identified in the Application Packet and in any Request 
for Proposals the Authority Board may have issued.  Full public disclosure of Board members’ relevant 
interests and background shall prevent conflicts of those interests from interfering with the State Public 
Charter School Authority’s mission to authorize high quality charter schools. 

 

 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:   Review of an application to 
form a charter school at a meeting pursuant to 
subsection 5 of NRS 386.525. 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:  9  
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1  
   /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  x / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero, Director State Public Charter School Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pinecrest Academy of Nevada 
The Application Review Team’s consensus recommendation is for the Authority Board to approve the 
Pinecrest Academy of Nevada application for a Subsection 7 Charter.   
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The Authority’s Application Review Team reviewed the application to form Pinecrest Academy for 
sponsorship by the State Public Charter School Authority.  A number of concerns regarding the 
application were formally communicated to the Committee to Form the School, and the Committee 
was allowed 30 days to revise and resubmit the application.  During this time Application Review 
Team members offered and provided assistance to the Committee.  Upon resubmission of the 
application and review of the resubmission by the Application Review Team, the Authority notified 
the Committee that the application was now sufficiently complete and compliant to warrant 
advancement to the next stage in the process, an interview of Committee members by the 
Application Review Team.  The interview addressed remaining fundamental concerns of the review 
team, and thus staff recommends approval of the application to form the Pinecrest Academy of 
Nevada charter school.   
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: __    ____________   



Report on Charter Applicant: Pinecrest Academy of Nevada 
Mission from charter application: Pinecrest Academy of Nevada will provide a safe and 
nurturing educational environment that maximizes student achievement and fosters respect for 
all. Pinecrest Academy will utilize ongoing assessments, engaging activities, the creation of a 
strong community environment and regular parent involvement to achieve student success. In 
this manner, Pinecrest Academy will assist all students to become equally successful as lifelong 
learners and responsible citizens.  

County in which school will be located: Clark; Henderson (specific location TBD) 

School Type: Elementary (K-8) 

 Grades Served Year 1: K-5 

 Grades Served Year 2: K-6 

Planned Opening: Fall 2012 

Projected Enrollment: Y1 – 300; Y2 – 400 

Proposed Charter: Subsection 7 (of NRS 386.527)  

 Lack of facility 

  

Educational Management Organization (if applicable): 

Academica Nevada, LLC  

Pinecrest Academy, INC 

Curriculum model or special focus: 

Based on South Florida Pinecrest Academy - Rigorous academic environment; coherent and 
aligned professional development; safe environment conducive to learning. 

Not Distance Education, Not primarily for at-risk youth, Not Vocational Education 

Legislative Intent 

2) Increase the opportunities for learning and access to quality education by pupils. 

Report:  



On December 13, 2011, members of the Committee to Form the Pinecrest Academy of Nevada 
participated in an interview with the State Public Charter School Authority’s Application Review 
Team. The purpose of the interview was to inform the Application Review Team’s 
recommendation to the Board of the State Public Charter School Authority.  Based on the 
application and the Committee members’ responses to the Review Team’s interview questions, 
the Review Team recommendation is for the Authority Board to approve the application for a 
Subsection 7 Charter.  The Subsection 7 Charter will identify the remaining tasks that must be 
accomplished in order to have the Subsection 7 Charter converted to a NRS 386.527(5) charter 
under which the school may receive state funding and commence operation. 



 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Se
ct

io
n

A
R

T
 F

in
di

ng
In

te
rv

ie
w

 T
op

ic
s

A
R

T
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n

A
.1

 M
is

si
on

, V
is

io
n,

 a
nd

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l P

hi
lo

so
ph

y
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
Ra

tio
na

le
 fo

r i
nc

lu
si

on
 o

f S
ize

r's
 te

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 in
 th

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

ph
ilo

so
ph

y
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
A

.2
 S

ch
oo

l-S
pe

ci
fic

 G
oa

ls
 a

nd
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.3

 C
ur

ri
cu

lu
m

 a
nd

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.4

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

lit
y

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.5

 T
en

ta
tiv

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 C
al

en
da

r 
an

d 
D

ai
ly

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
A

.6
 S

ch
oo

l C
lim

at
e 

an
d 

D
is

ci
pl

in
e

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.7

 T
ar

ge
t P

op
ul

at
io

n
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

of
 P

in
ec

re
st

 "
m

od
el

" 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.8

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
tu

de
nt

 P
op

ul
at

io
ns

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

Co
nt

in
uu

m
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
de

fin
ed

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

pe
nd

in
g 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
7 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
: 

Co
nt

in
uu

m
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

s 
no

tic
e 

to
 s

po
ns

or
 if

 
ch

an
ge

d;
 C

or
re

ct
ed

 fo
rm

 
re

qu
ire

d
A

.9
 R

ec
or

ds
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
A

.1
0 

C
ar

ee
r 

Ed
uc

at
io

n
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

B
.1

 G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

Bo
ar

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
.2

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 F

or
m

 th
e 

Sc
ho

ol
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d

B
.3

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

Co
m

m
itt

ee
 to

 F
or

m
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 E

M
O

; P
in

ec
re

st
 a

ffi
lia

tio
n

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
.3

.1
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

EM
O

 a
nd

 
Bo

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
.4

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
.1

 B
ud

ge
t

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

pe
nd

in
g 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
7 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
C

.2
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
.3

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 to
 F

or
m

 ra
tio

na
le

 o
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

se
le

ct
io

n
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

C
.4

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Se
rv

ic
e M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d

P
in

ec
re

st
 A

ca
de

m
y



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:   Review of an application to 
form a charter school at a meeting pursuant to 
subsection 5 of NRS 386.525. 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:  10  
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S):  
   /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  x / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero, Director State Public Charter School Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Honors Academy of Literature  
The Application Review Team’s consensus recommendation is for the Authority Board to approve the 
Honors Academy application for a Subsection 7 Charter.   
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The Authority’s Application Review Team reviewed the application to form Honors Academy for 
sponsorship by the State Public Charter School Authority.  A number of concerns regarding the 
application were formally communicated to the Committee to Form the School, and the Committee 
was allowed 30 days to revise and resubmit the application.  During this time Application Review 
Team members offered and provided assistance to the Committee.  Upon resubmission of the 
application and review of the resubmission by the Application Review Team, the Authority notified 
the Committee that the application was now sufficiently complete and compliant to warrant 
advancement to the next stage in the process, an interview of Committee members by the 
Application Review Team.  The interview addressed remaining fundamental concerns of the review 
team, and thus staff  recommends approval of the application to form the Honors Academy of 
Literature charter school.   
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: __    ____________   



Report on Charter Applicant: The Honors Academy of Literature 
Mission from charter application: Our mission is to offer a differentiated curriculum that 
supports education equity though consistent learning and growth; to enliven a love of learning 
and educational discovery though the exploration of children’s literature; and to provide all 
students a foundation for excellence upon which to build success in future learning. 

County in which school will be located: Washoe; Reno (specific location TBD) 

School Type

 Grades Served Year 1: 3-8 

: Elementary  (K-8) 

 Grades Served Year 2: K-8 

Planned Opening: Fall 2012 

Projected Enrollment

 Will limit enrollment:20:1 in Grades K-2     25:1 in Grades 3-5      30:1 in Grades 6-8 

: Y1 – 330; Y2 – 450 

Proposed Charter

 Lack of facility; Special Education Plan;  

: Subsection 7 (of NRS 386.527)  

Educational Management Organization (if applicable): N/A 

Curriculum model or special focus

The Honors Academy offers enriched exposure to contemporary high interest literature across 
the curriculum and developmental teaching as the primary approach to instruction. Students will 
interact in a student centered, cooperative learning environment.  

: 

Not Distance Education, Not primarily for at-risk youth, Not Vocational Education 

Establishing accountability of public schools 

Legislative Intent 

Creating new professional opportunities for teachers 

Report

On December 13, 2011, members of the Committee to Form the Honors Academy of Literature 
participated in an interview with the State Public Charter School Authority’s Application Review 
Team. The purpose of the interview was to inform the Application Review Team’s 
recommendation to the Board of the State Public Charter School Authority. Based on the 

: 



application and the Committee members’ responses to the Review Team’s interview questions, 
the Review Team recommendation is for the Authority Board to approve the application for a 
Subsection 7 Charter.  The Subsection 7 Charter will identify the remaining tasks that must be 
accomplished in order to have the Subsection 7 Charter converted to a NRS 386.527(5) charter 
under which the school may receive state funding and commence operation.  



 

  

H
on

or
's

 A
ca

de
m

y
A

pp
lic

at
io

n
C

on
ce

rn
s:

 I
nt

er
vi

ew
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n

A
.1

 M
is

si
on

, V
is

io
n,

 a
nd

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l P

hi
lo

so
ph

y
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 F
or

m
 u

se
 o

f 
eq

ui
ty

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
.2

 S
ch

oo
l-S

pe
ci

fic
 G

oa
ls

 a
nd

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
s

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

: R
at

io
na

le
 o

n 
wh

y 
no

t m
ea

su
re

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 Y

1

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 p
en

di
ng

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

: 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l e

di
ts

; C
la

rif
yi

ng
 

"p
ro

ce
s"

 v
er

su
s 

"o
ut

co
m

e"
.

A
.3

 C
ur

ri
cu

lu
m

 a
nd

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
.4

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

lit
y

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

s
D

at
a 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

's 
pr

ep
er

at
io

n,
 

in
qu

iry
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
us

in
g 

M
A

PS
 d

at
a

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
.5

 T
en

ta
tiv

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 C
al

en
da

r 
an

d 
D

ai
ly

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
A

.6
 S

ch
oo

l C
lim

at
e 

an
d 

D
is

ci
pl

in
e

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
.7

 T
ar

ge
t P

op
ul

at
io

n
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
s

St
ra

te
gi

es
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 re
ac

h 
tra

di
tio

na
lly

 
le

ss
 in

fo
m

ed
 fa

m
ile

s
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds

A
.8

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
tu

de
nt

 P
op

ul
at

io
ns

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

s

Co
nt

in
uu

m
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 in
iti

al
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

op
er

at
io

n;
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

bu
dg

et
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

.

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 p
en

di
ng

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

: 
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
ito

n 
bu

dg
et

 
re

vi
si

on
s

A
.9

 R
ec

or
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
.1

0 
C

ar
ee

r 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

B
.1

 G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

s
Te

ch
ni

ca
l d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 p
en

di
ng

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

: 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l e

di
ts

 o
f b

yl
aw

s
B

.2
 C

om
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 F
or

m
 th

e 
Sc

ho
ol

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

B
.3

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

s

Ra
tio

na
le

 fo
r o

rg
an

iza
to

in
al

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 c
on

si
de

re
d;

 te
ac

he
r 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
mo

de
l; 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
trt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

B
.3

.1
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

B
.4

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

C
.1

 B
ud

ge
t

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

s
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
tio

n;
 re

se
ar

ch
 a

nd
 ra

tio
na

le
 o

n 
te

ac
he

r c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
C

.2
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

C
.3

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

C
.4

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 H
ea

lt
h 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:   Review of an application to 
form a charter school at a meeting pursuant to 
subsection 5 of NRS 386.525. 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM: 11   
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1 
   /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  x / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero, Director State Public Charter School Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Learning Bridge 
It is the Authority staff recommendation to deny the application to form Learning Bridge Charter 
School. 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The Authority’s Application Review Team reviewed the application to form Learning Bridge for 
sponsorship by the State Public Charter School Authority.  A number of concerns regarding the 
application were formally communicated to the Committee to Form the School, and the Committee 
was allowed 30 days to revise and resubmit the application.  During this time Application Review 
Team members offered and provided assistance to the Committee.  Upon resubmission of the 
application and review of the resubmission by the Application Review Team, the Authority notified 
the Committee that the application was now sufficiently complete and compliant to warrant 
advancement to the next stage in the process, an interview of Committee members by the 
Application Review Team.  The interview, however, failed to address remaining fundamental 
concerns of the review team, and thus staff recommend denial of the application to form the 
Learning Bridge charter school.  The Committee may re-submit another application as allowed in 
statute.     
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: __    ____________   



Report on Charter Applicant: Learning Bridge 
Mission from charter application: The Learning Bridge Charter School will provide an 
environment in which students will be immersed in an intense educational experience that will 
greatly improve their knowledge base and their chances for a successful future. 

County in which school will be located: White Pine; Ely 

School Type

 Grades Served Year 1: K-5 

: Elementary (K-8) 

 Grades Served Year 2: K-6 

Planned Opening: Fall 2012 

Projected Enrollment

 Enrollment limited to 20:1 ratio across grades 

: Y1 – 100; Y2 – 120 

Proposed Charter: Subsection 7 (of NRS 386.527) 

Educational Management Organization (if applicable): N/A 

Curriculum model or special focus

Core Knowledge  and CELL-ExLL, positive school culture achieved through use of 7 Habits 
books by Sean Covey, school wide offering of Chinese language and culture 

: 

Not Distance Education, Not primarily for at-risk youth, Not Vocational Education 

Increase the opportunities for learning and access to quality education by pupils. 

Legislative Intent 

On December 13, 2011, members of the Committee to Form the Learning Bridge participated in 
an interview with the State Public Charter School Authority’s Charter School Application 
Review Team. Based on your application and the Committee members’ responses to the Review 
Team’s interview questions, the Review Team has developed a recommendation to the Authority 
Board. The Review Team’s recommendation is for the Authority Board is to deny the application 
for a Subsection 7 Charter. 

Report 

 
The recommendation for denial is a consensus decision of the Review Team that the interview 
did not sufficiently resolve certain of the Review Team’s concerns including: 
 

• School-Specific Goals and Objectives 
o Use of McGill/Ely as a meaningful measure of student achievement 
o Rationale for determining Status/Proficiency targets 



o Logic for sole inclusion of status rather than growth 
• Assessment and Accountability 

o Reliance on first generation assessments without meaningful inclusion 
of second generation assessments (e.g., growth) 

o Determination of one year’s growth as a standard for promotion 
• Governance/Financial 

o General approach to ensure strong fiscal stewardship 
 



 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Se
ct

io
n

A
R

T
 F

in
di

ng
In

te
rv

ie
w

 T
op

ic
s

A
R

T
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
A

.1
 M

is
si

on
, V

is
io

n,
 a

nd
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l P
hi

lo
so

ph
y

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.2

 S
ch

oo
l-S

pe
ci

fic
 G

oa
ls

 a
nd

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd

Ra
tio

na
le

 fo
r o

ut
pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
sc

ho
ol

/d
is

tri
ct

 a
s 

a 
me

an
in

gf
ul

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
; B

as
is

 fo
r s

el
ec

tin
g 

4%
 in

cr
ea

se
 

in
 C

RT
 s

co
re

s 
as

 a
 ta

rg
et

; R
at

io
na

le
 fo

r 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
me

as
ur

e 
of

 s
tu

de
nt

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 

gr
ow

th
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd

A
.3

 C
ur

ri
cu

lu
m

 a
nd

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

Co
re

 K
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
on

 c
or

e;
 B

as
is

 fo
r 

se
le

ct
in

g 
Co

re
 K

no
w

le
dg

e;
 

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.4

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

lit
y

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

Pr
om

ot
io

n 
st

an
da

rd
 o

f o
ne

 y
ea

rs
' g

ro
w

th
; 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

on
 u

se
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

A
.5

 T
en

ta
tiv

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 C
al

en
da

r 
an

d 
D

ai
ly

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
A

.6
 S

ch
oo

l C
lim

at
e 

an
d 

D
is

ci
pl

in
e

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.7

 T
ar

ge
t P

op
ul

at
io

n
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l p

ro
gr

am
 

gi
ve

n 
ta

rg
et

 p
op

ul
at

io
n

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.8

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
tu

de
nt

 P
op

ul
at

io
ns

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.9

 R
ec

or
ds

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
.1

0 
C

ar
ee

r 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

B
.1

 G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s/

M
ee

ts
 

St
an

da
rd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

re
vi

si
on

s:
 S

pe
ci

fic
 

ed
iti

ng
 o

f b
yl

aw
s

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
Ex

is
t  

 
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd

B
.2

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 F

or
m

 th
e 

Sc
ho

ol

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s/

M
ee

ts
 

St
an

da
rd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

re
vi

si
on

s:
 S

pe
ci

fic
 

ed
iti

ng
 o

f b
yl

aw
s

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
Ex

is
t  

 
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd

B
.3

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tio
n

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

U
se

 o
f c

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r h

ig
h 

st
ak

es
 p

er
so

nn
el

 
de

ci
si

on
s

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
.3

.1
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

B
.4

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

C
.1

 B
ud

ge
t

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s/

M
ee

ts
 

St
an

da
rd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

re
vi

si
on

s:
 S

pe
ci

fic
 

ed
iti

ng
 o

f b
yl

aw
s

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 w
ith

 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 e
nr

ol
lm

en
t -

 b
ud

ge
t 

an
al

ys
is

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
Ex

is
t  

 
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd

C
.2

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
A

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
St

an
da

rd
St

ro
ng

 s
en

se
 o

f f
is

ca
l s

tw
ea

rd
sh

ip
; 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
ls

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

St
an

da
rd

C
.3

 F
ac

ili
tie

s
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
M

ee
ts

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

7 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

C
.4

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 H
ea

lt
h 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

M
ee

ts
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

Th
e 

L
ea

rn
in

g 
B

rid
ge



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:  Establish Board Member’s 
payment at $80 or less per meeting 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:   12 
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 0 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /     / Information   
   /  X/ Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Establish Board Member’s payment per meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The payment of each board member will have a fiscal impact dependent upon the 
frequency of meetings. 
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):   
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
   NRS 386.5095  Appointment and qualifications of members; terms; vacancies; selection of 
Chair and Vice Chair; compensation, allowances and travel expenses. 
  6.  Each member of the State Public Charter School Authority is entitled to receive: 
     (a) For each day or portion of a day during which he or she attends a meeting of the State Public Charter School 
Authority a salary of not more than $80, as fixed by the State Public Charter School Authority; and 
     (b) For each day or portion of a day during which he or she attends a m eeting o f the State Public Charter School 
Authority or is otherwise engaged in the business of the State Public Charter School Authority the per diem allowance 
and travel expenses provided for state officers and employees generally. 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:  Discussion of Future Agenda 
Items 
 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:  13  
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   / x  / Information   
   /   / Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Dr. Steve Canavero   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):  
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



 

 
Mission 
The Nevada State Public Charter School Authority sponsors high-quality charter schools through 
practices informed by state law and nationally recognized standards in order to serve as a model sponsor 
and ultimately improve student educational outcomes.  
 
Core Principles of a Model Sponsor 
 
Maintain High Standards 

• Sets high standards for approving charter applicants. 
• Maintains high standards for the schools it oversees. 
• Effectively cultivates quality charter schools that meet identified educational needs. 
• Oversees charter schools that, over time, meet the performance standards and targets set forth in 

their charter contracts on a range of measures and metrics. 
• Closes schools that fail to meet standards and targets set forth in law and by contract. 

 
Uphold School Autonomy 

• Honors and preserves core autonomies crucial to school success, including; 
o Governing board independence from the sponsor; 
o Personnel; 
o School vision and culture; 
o Instructional programming, design, and use of time; and 
o Budgeting. 

• Assumes responsibility not for the success or failure of individual schools, but for holding 
schools accountable for their performance. 

• Minimizes administrative compliance burdens on schools. 
• Focuses on holding schools accountable for outcomes rather than processes. 

 
Protect Student and Public Interests 

• Makes the well-being and interests of students the fundamental value informing all the sponsor’s 
actions and decisions. 

• Holds schools accountable for fulfilling fundamental public education obligations to all students, 
including providing: 

o Nonselective, nondiscriminatory access to all eligible students; 
o Fair treatment for all students in admissions and disciplinary actions; and 
o Appropriate services for all students in accordance with law. 

• Holds schools accountable for fulfilling fundamental obligations to the public, including 
providing: 

o Sound governance, management, and stewardship of public funds; and 
o Public information and operational transparency in accordance with law. 

• Ensures in its own work: 
o Ethical conduct; 
o Focus on the mission of chartering high-quality schools; 
o Clarity, consistency, and public transparency in authorizing policies, practices, and 

decisions; 
o Effective and efficient public stewardship; and 
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

• Supports parents and students in being well-informed about the quality of education provided by 
charter schools. 



STATE PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORITY 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENT   

S U B J E C T:  Establish Meeting Schedule 
 

  

   /    / Public Workshop  MEETING DATE:   February 10, 2012 
   /    / Public Hearing   AGENDA ITEM:  14 
   /    /   Consent Agenda   NUMBER OF ENCLOSURE(S): 1 
 /    / Regulation Adoption     
   /    / Approval    
   /    / Appointments    
   /  x / Information   
   /  X/ Action    
     
 
PRESENTER(S):  Newly Elected President 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To establish meeting dates for upcoming SPCSA Board meetings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Per diem rates will be paid to Board members when meetings take place.  
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT  (FOR PRINTING CHARGES ONLY):   
 
LENGTH OF TIME EXPECTED FOR PRESENTATION (IN MINUTES):  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND: In order for the SPCSA Board to minimize schedule conflicts, a calendar of 
meetings should be established so all board members are aware of upcoming meeting dates.     
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Dr. Steve Canavero, Director, SPCSA 



Proposed State Public Charter School 
Authority 2012/2013 Meeting Schedule 

SPCSA 2012 Mtg Schedule 
February 10, 2012 Initial meeting 

Charter application hearing for fall 2012 start 
March Meeting: General  
April 
мнκмо or нс/нт 

Board Retreat and Meeting: General  

May Meeting: Sub 7 conversion: for schools seeking 
early payment 

(June) (July) Meeting (if needed): Sub 7 conversion 
August 17 or 24, 
2012 

Meeting: Sub 7 conversion: final opportunity for 
fall 2012 start 

October 19, 2012 
 

Meeting: Charter Application hearing for fall 
2013 start (initial submission) 

December 13,14, 
2012 

Meeting: Charter Application hearing for fall 
2013 start (resubmission of previously denied 
application); Application release 

 

SPCSA 2013 Mtg Schedule 
February or March Meeting: General 
May, 2013 Meeting: Sub 7 conversion: for schools seeking 

early payment 
(June) (July) Meeting: (if needed) Sub 7 conversion 
August, 2013 Meeting: Sub 7 conversion: final opportunity for 

fall 2013 start 
October, 2013 Meeting: Charter Application hearing  for fall 

2014 start (initial submission) 
December, 2013 Meeting: Charter Application hearing for fall 

2014 start (resubmission of previously denied 
application); Application release 

 

+Special Meeting may be called at any time. 


	Final SPCSA Board Packet.pdf
	Final SPCSA Board Packet.pdf
	Final SPCSA Board Packet.pdf
	Introductions Supporting Doc_FINAL.pdf
	Compiled Board Bios
	Second
	Election Supporting Doc_FINAL
	SPCSA Opening Comments and Orientation_FINAL
	Ed Irvin Presentation
	App Review Policy Support Document_FINAL
	February Support Doc Pinecrest
	FINAL Pinecrest Board Support Doc
	Report on Charter Applicant: Pinecrest Academy of Nevada

	February Support Doc Honors
	FINAL Honors Board Support Doc
	Report on Charter Applicant: The Honors Academy of Literature

	February Support Doc Learning Bridge
	FINAL Learning Bridge Board Support Doc
	Report on Charter Applicant: Learning Bridge

	Payment Supporting Doc_FINAL
	Meeting Schedule Supporting Doc_FINAL
	Mission and Core Principles_FINAL
	State Public Charter School Authority 2012 Meeting Schedule_FINAL


	App review process 12.14.11_FINAL

	decision making policy v2_FINAL

	Ed Irvin Presentation Support_FINAL



